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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF QATAR FIRST BANK
L.L.C (PUBLIC)

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Qatar First Bank L.L.C
(Public) (‘the Bank’) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the ‘Group’) which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statements
of income, changes in owners’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Respective Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and Auditors

These consolidated financial statements and the Group’s undertaking to operate in accordance
with Islamic Shari’a rules and principles are the responsibility of the Board of Directors of the
Bank. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards for Islamic Financial
Institutions issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosure in the consolidated
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements
presentations. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and the results of its operations, changes
in owners’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Financial
Accounting Standards issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for Islamic Financial
Institutions and the Shari’a rules and principles as determined by the Shari’a Supervisory Board
of the Bank.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purpose
of our audit. The Bank has maintained proper accounting records and the consolidated financial
statements are in agreement therewith. We are not aware of any violations of the applicable
provisions of the Qatar Financial Centre Regulatory Authority regulations or the terms of the Article
of Association and any amendments thereto having occurred during the year which might have
had a material adverse effect on the Bank’s consolidated financial position or performance as at
and for year ended 31 December 2016.

L
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QATAR FIRST BANK L.L.C (Public)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2016 (expressed in QAR’000)
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Due from banks

Investments carried at amortised cost
Financing assets

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Equity investments

Investments in real estate

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Assets of disposal group classified as held-for-sale
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT
ACCOUNT HOLDERS AND EQUITY

Liabilities
Financing liabilities
Customers' balances
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities

Equity of Unrestricted Investment Account Holders

Equity

Share capital

Fair value reserve

(Accumulated deficit) / retained earnings

Total Equity Attributable to Shareholders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED
INVESTMENT ACCOUNT HOLDERS AND EQUITY

/)

As at

31 December 31 December
Notes 2016 2015
5 1,113,796 1,603,963
6 355,000 -
7 893,217 943,416
8 1,472,871 1,109,417
9 249,691 217,126
10 64,113 50,545
11 1,176,160 1,408,949
12 218,138 208,629
13 168,543 168,111
14 26,705 31,486
15 86,253 -
16 153,312 118,194
5,977,799 5,859,836

17 1,100,228 452,992
18 108,396 23,426
19 196,454 228,999
1,405,078 705,417

20 2,697,670 3,054,375
21 2,000,000 2,000,000
(s61) (22,243)

(200,754) 68,319
1,798,685 2,046,076

22 76,366 53,968
1,875,051 2,100,044
5,977,799 5,859,836

172 D

bdulla bin Fahad bin ékgorab Al Marri Léfx
Chairman

iad Khalil Makkawi

ief Executive Officer

The attached notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




QATAR FIRST BANK L.L.C (Public)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2016 (expressed in QAR’000)
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CONTINUING OPERATIONS
INCOME

Revenue from non-banking activities 23

(Loss) /gain on re-measurement of investments at fair value through

1income statement 112

Dividend income

Profit on investments carried at amortised cost

Gain on disposal of investments carried at amortised cost
Loss on disposal of equity investments

Gain on disposal of investment in real estate

Gain on disposal of convertible murabaha

Income from financing assets

Income from placements with financial institutions

Other income 24
Total Income Before Return To Unrestricted Investment

Account Holders
Return to investment account holders 20

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENSES

Expenses from non-banking activities 23
Staff costs

Financing costs

Depreciation and amortisation 13&14
Other operating expenses 25
TOTAL EXPENSES

Provision for impairment on financing assets 81

(LOSS) / PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
BEFORE INCOME TAX

Income tax expense

NET (LOSS) / PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Profit from discontinued operations, net of tax 152
NET (LOSS)/ PROFIT FORTHE YEAR

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Basic / diluted (loss) / earnings per share from continuing

operations - QAR 26
Basic / diluted earnings per share from discontinued

operations - QAR 26

Basic / diluted (loss)/ earnings per share -QAR

The attached notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended

31 December
Notes

31 December

2016 2015
442,711 416,795
(176,496) 138,135
13,115 8,232
28,778 21,450
673 2,541
- (29,360)

- 16,961

- 32,241

68,984 56,140
31,037 10,312
61,868 24,378
470,670 697,825
(84,554) (54,327)
386,116 643,498
(444,506) (402,940)
(80,150) (90,806)
(22,525) (14,179)
(12,510) (9,127)
(68,671) (55,079)
(628,362) (572131)
(25,316) (3313)
(267,562) 68,054
(267,562) 68,054
1,199 -
(266,363) 68,054
(265,687) 66,005
(676) 2,049
(266,363) 68,054
(1.34) 0.33
0.01 -
(1.33) 0.33




QATAR FIRST BANK L.L.C (Public)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (expressed in QAR’000)
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Balance at 1 January 2015

Fair value adjustment

Notes

Transfer to income statement due to disposal

of investment in real estate

Net profit for the year
Dividends

Balance at 31 December 2015
Balance at 1 January 2016

Fair value adjustment
Net loss for the year

35

Increase in non-controlling interests due to:

- Subsidiary's management remuneration
- Increase of share capital of a subsidiary
- Other movements

Balance at 31 December 2016

22

22

Fair value reserves

Total equity
Invest- (Accumula- attributable
ment fair Property ted deficit) to equity Non-
Share value fair value / Retained holders of controlling Total
capital reserve reserve earnings the Bank interests equity
2,000,000 (25,150) 21,998 162,314 2,159,162 51,919 2,211,081
- (2,108) - - (2,108) - (2,106)
- - (16,985) - (16,985) - (16,985)
- - - 66,005 66,005 2,049 68,054
- - - (160,000) (160,000) - (160,000)
2,000,000 (27,256) 5,013 68,319 2,046,076 53,968 2,100,044
2,000,000 (27,256) 5,013 68,319 2,046,076 53,968 2,100,044
- 22,177 382 - 22,559 85 22,644
- - - (265,687) (265,687) (676) (266,363)
- - (877) - (877) 4,956 4,079
- - - - - 13,447 13,447
- - - (3,386) (3,386) 4,586 1,200
2,000,000 (5,079) 4,518 (200,754) 1,798,685 76,366 1,875,051

The attached notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




QATAR FIRST BANK L.L.C (Public)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2016 (expressed in QAR’000)
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net (loss) / profit for the year

Adjustments for non-cash items in net (loss) / profit
Depreciation and amortisation

Subsidiary's management remuneration

Unrealised loss / (gains) on equity investments

Write off capital work in progress

Provision for impairment of financing assets

Other provisions, net

Changes in:

Due from banks

Investments carried at amortised cost
Financing assets

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Equity investments

Investments in real estate

Other assets

Customers’ balances

Other liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed and intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net change in financing liabilities

Net change in equity of investment account holders
Increase in non-controlling interest

Dividends paid to shareholders of the Bank

Net cash from financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

For the year ended

31 December

31 December

Notes 2016 2015
(266,363) 68,054

13&14 31,435 27,301
1,895 -
11.2 176,496 (138,135)
953 -

81 25,316 3,313
8,862 (259)
(21,406) (39,726)

(355,000) -
50,199 (195,196)
(388,770) (279,284)
(41,787) (171,768)
(13,208) (4,746)

(7,783) 204,046

(9,127) 47,506

(35,118) 59,209
84,970 (2,946)

(30,361) 12,508
(767,391) (370,397)
13%14 (28,077) (55,428)
38 -
(28,039) (55/428)

647,236 48,413

(356,705) 1,237,862

14,732 -
- (152,488)

305,263 1,133,787

(490,167) 707,962

5 1,603,963 896,001
1,113,796 1,603,963

The attached notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




QATAR FIRST BANK L.L.C (Public)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (expressed in QAR’000) Q FB

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Qatar First Bank L.L.C (Public) (“the Bank” or “the Parent”) is an Islamic bank, which was
established in the State of Qatar as a limited liability company under license No.00091, dated 4
September 2008, from the Qatar Financial Centre Authority. The Bank is authorised to conduct

the following regulated activities by the Qatar Financial Centre Regulatory Authority (the
“QFCRA”):

Deposit taking;

Providing credit facilities;

Dealing in investments;

Arranging deals in investments;

Arranging credit facilities;

Providing custody services;

Arranging the provision of custody services;
Managing investments;

Advising on investments; and

Operating a collective investment fund.

All the Bank’s activities are regulated by the QFCRA and are conducted in accordance with Islamic
Shari’a principles, as determined by the Shari’a Supervisory Board of the Bank and in accordance
with the provisions of its Articles of Association. The Bank operates through its head office located
on Suhaim bin Hamad Street, Doha, State of Qatar.

The Bank’s issued shares are listed for trading on the Qatar Exchange effective from 27 April 2016
(ticker: “QFBQ”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2016 comprise
the Bank and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group” and individually as “Group
entities”). The Parent Company / Ultimate Controlling Party of the Group is Qatar First Bank L.L.C
(Public).

The Bank had the following subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015:

Effective ownership as at Year of
31 December 31 December j_ncorpo-
Subsidiaries Activity 2016 2015 ration Country
Future Card Industries Manufac-
LLC turing 71.3% 71.3% 2012 UAE
Al Wasita Emirates for
Catering Services LLC Catering 81.9% 85.0% 2008 UAE
Isnad Catering Services
WLL Catering 75.0% 75.0% 2012 Qatar
QFB Money Market Money Cayman
Fund 1 Ltd. market fund 100.0% 100.0% 2015 Islands




QATAR FIRST BANK L.L.C (Public)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ol ylad ol
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (expressed in QAR’000) Q FB
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for
Islamic Financial Institutions (“AAOIFI”) and the Shari’a rules and principles as determined by
the Shari’a Supervisory Board of the Bank. In line with the requirements of AAOIF]I, for matters
that are not covered by FAS, the Group uses the guidance from the relevant International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for valuation of equity investments, investments in real estate, Sharia-compliant-risk-
management instruments which are carried at fair value.

Functional and presentational currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Qatari Riyals (“QAR”), which is the Bank’s
functional and presentational currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest QAR thousand
except when otherwise indicated. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with FAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected. Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements are described in Note 4.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
set out below:

3.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has power,
exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and the ability to use
its power to affect those returns. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.




QATAR FIRST BANK L.L.C (Public)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Il Ll
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (expressed in QAR'000) Q FB

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Subsidiaries (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of the Bank and its
subsidiaries. All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and unrealised profits
and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full on the consolidation.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date
i.e. when control is transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is
generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that
arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in the
consolidated income statement immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except
if they are related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

Non-controlling interests

Interests in the equity of subsidiaries not attributable to the parent are reported in consolidated
statement of financial position in owners’ equity as non-controlling interests. Profits or losses
attributable to non-controlling interests are reported in the consolidated income statement as
profits or losses attributable to non-controlling interests. Losses applicable to the non-controlling
interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests even if doing so causes the
non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of
the Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in owners’ equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
owners’ equity.

3.2 Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Qatari Riyals at the exchange rate prevailing
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into Qatari Riyals at the rates ruling at the date of consolidated financial position.

All differences from gains and losses resulting from settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income statement. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency, including equity investments, are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Effects of exchange rate changes on non-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are recorded as part of the fair value gain or loss.




QATAR FIRST BANK L.L.C (Public)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Il Ll
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (expressed in QAR'000) Q FB

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Foreign currencies (continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a local currency different from the presentational currency
are translated as follows:

. Assets and liabilities for each financial position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that financial position,

. Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

. All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of the
consolidated statement of changes in owners’ equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations are taken to the consolidated statement of changes in owners’ equity within the
“translation reserve”. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

3.3 Financial assets and liabilities

Recognition
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the trade date at which the Group becomes a
party of the contractual provisions of the instruments.

De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised where:

. the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or

. the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through"
arrangement; or

J the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either: (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired.




QATAR FIRST BANK L.L.C (Public)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Il Ll
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (expressed in QAR'000) Q FB

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4  Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amounts reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and the Group intends to either settle these on a net basis, or intends to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Bank or the counterparty.

3.5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as referred to in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise of
cash and balances with banks; and amounts of placements with financial institutions with an
original maturity of three months or less. Placements with financial institutions comprise
placements with banks in the form of Wakala and Murabaha investment. They are stated at cost
plus related accrued profit and net of provision for impairment, if any.

3.6 Due from banks

Due from banks represent amounts of placements with financial institutions with an original
maturity more than three months. Due from bank placements are invested under Wakala and
Murabaha and Mudaraba terms. They are stated at cost plus related accrued profit and net of
provision for impairment, if any.

3.7 Investment carried at amortised cost

Investments in Sukuk are carried at amortised cost when the investment is managed on a
contractual yield basis and its performance is evaluated on the basis of contractual cash flows.
These investments are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. Premiums or
discounts are then amortised over the investment’s life using effective profit method less reduction
for impairment, if any.

Gain on disposal of investment carried at amortised cost is recognised when substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of these assets are transferred and equals to the difference between fair
value of proceeds and the carrying amount at time of de-recognition.

3.8  Financing assets
Financing activities comprise murabaha and ijarah contracts:

Due from murabaha contracts

Murabaha receivables are stated at their gross principal amounts less any amount received,
provision for impairment, profit in suspense and unearned profit. These receivables are written off
and charged against specific provisions only in circumstances where all reasonable restructuring
and collection activities have been exhausted, any recoveries from previously written off financing
activities are written back to the specific provision.

The Group considers the promise made in murabaha to the purchase orderer as obligatory.

10



QATAR FIRST BANK L.L.C (Public)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Il Ll
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (expressed in QAR'000) Q FB

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.8 Financing assets (continued)

Due from jjarah contracts

Tjarah receivables arise from financing structures when the purchase and immediate lease of an
asset are at cost plus an agreed profit (in total forming fair value). The amount is settled on a
deferred payment basis. [jarah receivable are carried at the aggregate of the minimum lease
payments, less deferred income (in total forming amortised cost) and impairment allowance (if
any). ljarah income is recognised on time-apportioned basis over the lease period. Income related
to non-performing accounts is excluded from the consolidated income statement.

3.9 Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable is the amount of debt due from the customers at the end of the financial period
and are stated at amortised cost less any provision for doubtful debts, if any. When an account
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

3.10 Inventories

Raw materials are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Costs of raw materials include:

(a)  costs of purchases (including transport, and handling) net of trade discounts received, and;
(b)  other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of raw materials is recorded using the first-in first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Finished and semi-finished goods are also measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value
that include cost of raw materials, labour and factory overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expense.

3.11 Equity investments

Equity investments comprise the following:

a) Investments carried at fair value

Equity type instruments are investments that do not exhibit the feature of debt type instruments

and include instruments that evidence a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all its liabilities.

11



QATAR FIRST BANK L.L.C (Public)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Il Ll
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (expressed in QAR'000) Q FB

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.11  Equity investments (continued)
a) Investments carried at fair value (continued)

I Classification
Investments in equity type instruments are classified into the following categories: 1) at fair value
through income statement or 2) at fair value through equity.

Equity-type investments classified and measured at fair value through income statement include
investments held for trading or designated at fair value through income statement.

An investment is classified as held for trading if acquired or originated principally for the purpose
of generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price or dealer’s margin. Any investments
that form part of a portfolio where there is an actual pattern of short-term profit taking are also
classified as ‘held for trading’.

Equity-type investments designated at fair value through income statement include investments
which are managed and evaluated internally for performance on a fair value basis.

On initial recognition, the Group makes an irrevocable election to designate certain equity
instruments that are not designated at fair value through income statement to be classified as
investments at fair value through equity.

1. Recognition and de-recognition

Investment securities are recognised at the trade date i.e. the date that the Group contracts to
purchase or sell the asset, at which date the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Investment securities are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all risk and rewards of
ownership.

111, Measurement

Initial recognition

Investment securities are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs, except for
transaction costs incurred to acquire investments at fair value through income statement which
are charged to consolidated income statement.

Subsequent measurement

Investments at fair value through income statement are remeasured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period and the resultant remeasurement gains or losses is recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they arise. Subsequent to initial recognition, investments
classified at amortised cost are measured at amortised cost using the effective profit method less
any impairment allowance. All gains or losses arising from the amoritisation process and those
arising on de-recognition or impairment of the investments, are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.11  Equity investments (continued)

Investments at fair value through equity are remeasured at their fair values at the end of each
reporting period and the resultant gain or loss, arising from a change in the fair value of
investments are recognised in the consolidated statement of changes in owners’ equity and
presented in a separate investment fair value reserve within equity. When the investments
classified as fair value through equity are sold, impaired, collected or otherwise disposed of, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the consolidated statement of changes in owners’
equity is transferred to the consolidated income statement.

Investments which do not have a quoted market price or other appropriate methods from which to
derive a reliable measure of fair value when on a continuous basis cannot be determined, are stated
at cost less impairment allowance, (if any).

b) Other investments

Other investments includes venture capital investments held as part of investments portfolio that
are managed with the objective of earning a return on these investments. The Group aims to
generate a growth in the value of investments in the medium term and usually identifies an exit
strategy or strategies when an investment is made.

The investments are typically in businesses unrelated to the Bank’s business. Investments are
managed on a fair value basis and are accounted for as investments designated at fair value
through the consolidated income statement.

3.12 Impairment

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses impairment at each financial reporting date whenever there is objective
evidence that a specific financial asset or a group of financial assets may be impaired.

In case of equity investments classified as fair value through equity, objective evidence would
include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. The
determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgement and is assessed for each
investment separately. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that investment previously recognised in the consolidated income statement - is removed from
equity and recognised in the consolidated income statement. Impairment losses on equity
investments are not reversed through the consolidated income statement; increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in the fair value reserve in the consolidated
statement of changes in owners’ equity.

Investments in equity instruments that are carried at cost in the absence of a reliable measure of
fair value are also tested for impairment, if there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount and its expected recoverable amount. All impairment losses are recognised in the
consolidated income statement and shall not be reversed.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.12 Impairment (continued)

Financing assets carried at amortised cost are impaired when their carrying amounts exceed their
expected present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
profit rate. Subsequent recovery of impairment losses are recognised through the consolidated
income statement, the reversal of impairment losses shall not result in a carrying amount of the
asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of a non-financial asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset (or cash-generating unit) is considered impaired and is written down
to its recoverable amount.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each financial position date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is
the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed for subsequent increases in the recoverable amount
in future periods.

3.13 Investment in real estate

Investment in real estate comprise building and other related assets which are held by the Group
to earn rentals and/ or are expected to benefit from capital appreciation. Initially investments are
recognised at cost including directly attributable expenditures. Subsequently, investments are
carried at fair value. Fair value of investments is re-measured at each reporting date and the
difference between the carrying value and fair value is recognised in the consolidated statement
of changes in owners’ equity under property fair value reserve.

In case of losses, they are then recognised in equity under investment fair value reserve to the
extent of availability of the reserve through earlier recognised gains assumed, in case such losses
exceeded the amount available in the equity fair value reserve for a particular investment in real
estate, excess losses are then recognised in the consolidated income statement under unrealised
re-measurement losses on investments.

Upon occurrence of future gains, unrealised gains related to the current period are recognised in
the consolidated income statement to the extent of crediting back previously recognised losses in
the consolidated income statement and excess gains then are recognised in the equity under
property fair value reserve.

14
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.13 Investment in real estate (continued)

Investment in real estate are derecognised when they have been disposed off or transferred to
investment in real estate-held for sale when the investment in real estate is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or
losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment in real estate along with any available fair
value reserves attributable to that investment are recognised in the consolidated income statement
in the year of retirement or disposal.

3.14 Assets held-for-sale and discontinued operations

Classification

The Group classifies non-current assets or disposal groups as held-for-sale if the carrying amount
is expected to be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use within twelve months. A disposal group is a group of assets to be disposed of, by sale or
otherwise, together as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those
assets that will be transferred in the transaction.

If the criteria for classification as held for sale are no longer met, the entity shall cease to classify
the asset (or disposal group) as held for sale and shall measure the asset at the lower of its carrying
amount before the asset (or disposal group) was classified as held-for-sale, adjusted for any
depreciation, recognised or revaluations that would have been recognised had the asset (or
disposal group) not been classified as held-for-sale and its recoverable amount at the date of the
subsequent decision not to sell.

Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the remaining
assets and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to financial assets and
investment property carried at fair value, which continue to be measured in accordance with the
Group’s other accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-sale and
subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Gains are not recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment loss.

Measurement

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held-for-sale, other than financial instruments,
are measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Financial
instruments that are non-current assets and ‘held-for-sale’ continue to be measured in accordance
with their stated accounting policies. On classification of equity-accounted investee as held-for-
sale, equity accounting is ceased at the time of such classification as held-for-sale. Non-financial
assets (i.e. intangible assets, equipment) are no longer amortised or depreciated.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cash flows

of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which:

- represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations;

- is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations; or

- is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to re-sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.14 Assets held-for-sale and discontinued operations (continued)

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs on disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held-for-sale, if earlier. When an operation is classified as a discontinued
operation, the comparative consolidated income statement is re-presented as if the operation had
been discontinued from the start of the comparative year.

3.15 Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are
included in the assets’ carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated income statement during the financial year in which they are incurred. The Group
depreciates fixed assets except for land, on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Years
Category description
Plant and machinery 7-10
Buildings 20
Equipment 3-5
Furniture and fixtures 3-7
Building renovations 5-10
Motor vehicles 5

3.16 Intangible assets

Intangible assets include the value of computer software and generated intangible assets that were
identified in the process of a business combination. The cost of intangible assets is their fair value
as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible
assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Years
Category description
Software and core banking system 5-7

Brand and contractual relationships
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Equity of unrestricted investment account holders

The Bank accepts funds from customers for investment in the Bank’s capacity as mudarib and at
the Bank’s discretion in whatever manner the Bank deems appropriate without laying down any
restriction as to where, how and for what purpose the fund should be invested. Such funds are
classified in the statement of financial position as equity of unrestricted investment account

holders.

Equity of unrestricted investments account holders is recognised when received and initially
measured at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, equity of unrestricted investments account
holders is measured at amortised cost.

The allocation of profit of investments jointly financed by the Bank and investments account
holders is determined by the management of the Bank within allowed profit sharing limits as per
terms and conditions of the investment accounts. Such profit is measured after setting aside
impairment provisions, if any. Impairment provision is made when the management considers
that there is impairment in the carrying amount of assets financed by the investment account.

Administrative expenses in connection with management of the fund are charged to the common
pool results.

3.18 Recognition of income

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Income earned by the Group is recognised on
the following basis:

Income from financing activities

Murabaha

Profit from Murabaha transactions is recognised when the income is both contractually
determinable and quantifiable at the commencement of the transaction. Such income is
recognised on a time-apportioned basis over the period of the transaction. Where the income from
a contract is not contractually determinable or quantifiable, it is recognised when the realisation
is reasonably certain or when actually realised. Income related to non-performing accounts is
excluded from the consolidated income statement.

[jarah
[jarah income is recognised on time-apportioned basis over the lease period. Income related to
non-performing accounts is excluded from the consolidated income statement.

Income from placements with financial institutions
Income from short term placements is recognised on a time apportioned basis over the period of
the contract based on the principal amounts outstanding and the expected profits.

Rental income
The Group recognises rental income from properties according to the rent agreements entered
into between the Group and the tenants on an accrual basis over the period of the contract.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.18 Recognition of income (continued)

Revenue from non-banking activities
Revenue from non-banking activities relates to the Group’s subsidiaries and it is primarily derived
from sale of goods and services, which is recognised when all of the following conditions are met:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group;
and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the dividend is established.

Income from equity investments
Income from equity investments is described in Note 3.11.

3.19 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Group provides for its contribution to the State administered retirement fund for Qatari
employees in accordance with the retirement law, and the resulting charge is included within the
staff costs in the consolidated income statement. The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised when they are due.

Employee’s end of service benefits

The Group establishes a provision for all end of service benefits payable to employees in
accordance with the Group’s policies which comply with laws and regulations applicable to the
Group. Liability is calculated on the basis of individual employee’s salary and period of service at
the financial position date. The provision for employees’ end of service benefits is included within
other liabilities.

3.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities include guarantees, letters of credit, Group’s obligations with respect to
unilateral promise to buy/sell currencies, profit rate swaps and others. These do not constitute
actual assets or liabilities at the consolidated statement of financial position date except for assets
and obligations relating to fair value gains or losses on these derivative financial instruments.

3.22 Sharia-compliant-risk-management instruments

Sharia-compliant-risk-management instruments, including unilateral/bilateral promises to
buy/sell currencies, profit rate swaps, currency options are carried at their fair value. All Sharia-
compliant-risk-management instruments are carried as assets when fair value is positive, and as
liabilities when fair value is negative. Changes in the fair value of these instruments are included
in profit or loss for the year (other income / other expense). The Group does not apply hedge
accounting.

3.23 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which
it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to
transactions with any of the Group’s other components, whose operating results are reviewed
regularly by the Group Management Committee (being the chief operating decision maker) to
make decisions about resources allocated to each segment and assess its performance, and for
which discrete financial information is available. Segment reporting are disclosed in Note 34.

3.24 Income tax

(a) Current income tax

The Bank is subject to income tax in Qatar in accordance with Decree no 13 for the year 2010 of
the Minister of Economy and Finance addressing QFC Tax regulations applicable as of 1 January
2010. Income tax expense is charged to the consolidated income statement.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method for tax loss carry forwards
and temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards are recorded
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductions can be utilised.

3.25 Operating leases

Where the Group is a lessee in a lease which does not transfer substantially all the risks and

rewards incidental to ownership from the lessor to the Group, the total lease payments are charged
to profit or loss for the year (rental expense) on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.26 Zakah

The Bank is not obliged to pay Zakah on its profits on behalf of shareholders. The Bank is required
to calculate and notify individual shareholders of Zakah payable per share. These calculations are
approved by the Bank’s Shari’a Supervisory Board

3.27 New standards, amendments and interpretations effective from 1 January 2016
Financial Accounting Standard No. 27 (FAS 27): Investment Accounts

FAS 27 updates and replaces previous accounting standards relating to investment accounts - FAS
5: Disclosure of Bases for Profit Allocation between Owners' Equity and Investment Account
Holders as well as FAS 6: Equity of Investment Account Holders and Their Equivalent.

This standard applies to investment accounts based on Mudaraba contracts which represent
"equity of investment account holders and on Mudaraba contracts that are placed on "short-term
basis" (overnight, seven days, one-month basis) by other financial institutions as "interbank-bank
deposits" for the purpose of liquidity management. However, it is not applicable to own equity
instruments, wakala contracts, reverse murabaha, musharaka or sukuk.

During the year, the Group applied FAS 27 as it is effective from financial periods beginning from
1 January 2016. Accordingly, adoption of FAS 27 did not have a significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

3.28 New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective

There are no new accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued but not
yet effective.

4. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the management has used its
judgements and estimates in determining the amounts recognised therein. The most significant
use of judgements and estimates are as follows:

Classification of financial instruments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management decides on the
acquisition of an investment, whether it should be classified as investments at fair value through
income statement (held for trading or designated including venture capital investments), carried
at amortised cost or fair value through equity. The classification of each investment reflects the
management’s intention in relation to each investment and is subject to different accounting
treatments based on such classification.

Fair value of equity investments that were valued using assumptions that are not based on
observable market data.

The Group uses significant judgements and estimates to determine fair value of investments
valued using assumptions that are not based on observable market data.
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4 USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Information about fair values of instruments that were valued using assumptions that are not
based on observable market data is disclosed in Note 32.

Allowances for credit losses
Assets accounted for at amortised cost are evaluated for impairment on a basis described in
significant accounting policies.

The specific counterparty component of the total allowances for impairment applies to financial
assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based upon management’s best estimate of
the present value of the cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows,
management makes judgements about a counterparty’s financial situation and the net realisable
value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits, and the workout
strategy and estimate of cash flows considered recoverable are independently approved by the
Credit Risk function. Minimum impairment on specific counter parties are determined based on
the QFCRA regulations.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances cover credit losses inherent in financing portfolios
of measured at amortised cost with similar credit risk characteristics when there is objective
evidence to suggest that they contain impaired financial assets, but the individual impaired items
cannot yet be identified. In assessing the need for collective allowances, management considers
factors such as credit quality, portfolio size, concentrations and economic factors. In order to
estimate the required allowance, assumptions are made to define the way inherent losses are
modelled and to determine the required input parameters, based on historical experience and
current economic conditions. The accuracy of the allowances depends on the estimates of future
cash flows for specific counterparty allowances and the model assumptions and parameters used
in determining collective allowances.

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
Cash on hand 8,319 3,795
Balance with banks (current accounts) 95,804 93,754
Placement with financial institutions 1,009,673 1,506,414
1,113,796 1,603,963

Placements with financial institutions represent inter-bank placements in the form of Wakala,
Murabaha and other Islamic investments with original maturity less than three months.

6. DUE FROM BANKS

Due from banks represents inter-bank placements in the form of Murabaha, Mudaraba and other
Islamic investments with original maturity more than three months.
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7. INVESTMENTS CARRIED AT AMORTISED COST
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
Investments in sukuk 887,905 932,313
Unamortised premiums and discounts, net 5,312 11,103
893,217 943,416

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the Group’s investments in sukuk portfolio amounted to
QAR 897 million (31 December 2015: QAR 938 million). As at 31 December 2016, investments in
sukuk with a carrying amount of QAR 718 million were pledged against certain murabaha

financing liabilities (31 December 2015: nil).

8. FINANCING ASSETS

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

Murabaha financing 1,642,904 1,183,750
Ijarah receivable 64,721 90,500
Others 12,742 17,052
Total financing assets 1,720,367 1,291,302
Deferred profit (218,867) (178,572)
Provision for impairment on financing assets (28,629) (3,313)
Net financing assets 1,472,871 1,109,417

Murabaha finances, mainly represent murabaha facilities provided to investees and individual and

corporate clients as a part of private bank operations.

8.1. Movements in the provision for impairment on financing assets
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Specific  Collective Total Specific Collective Total
provision provision provision provision

At the beginning
of the year 3,313 - 3,313 - -
Provision during
the year, net of
recoveries 18,410 6,906 25,316 3,313 - 3,313
At the end of the
year 21,723 6,906 28,629 3,313 - 3,313
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9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable comprises of the following:
31 December

31 December

2016 2015

Trade debtors 261,457 219,670
Provision for impairment on accounts receivable (11,766) (2,544)

249,691 217,126

10. INVENTORIES

Inventories comprise the following:
31 December

31 December

2016 2015

Raw materials 46,657 32,932
Semi-finished goods 9,438 9,361
Finished goods 9,902 10,496
Less: write down to net realisable value (1,884) (2,244)
64,113 50,545

11. EQUITY INVESTMENTS

31 December

31 December

2016 2015

Notes
Investments at fair value through equity 111 147,580 125,403
Investments at fair value through income statement 11.5 1,028,580 1,283,546
1,176,160 1,408,949

As at 31 December 2016, equity investments with a carrying amount of QAR 421 million were
pledged against certain murabaha financing liabilities (31 December 2015: QAR 455 million).

11.1. Investments at fair value through equity

Investments at fair value through equity comprise equity investments as follows:

31 December

31 December

2016 2015

Quoted* 121,292 99,115
Unquoted** 26,288 26,288
147,580 125,403

*The investments’ fair value is determined based on prevailing bid prices in an active market.

**Unquoted equity securities of QAR 26.3 million as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: QAR
26.3 million) are carried at cost less impairment in the absence of reliable measure of fair value.
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11 EQUITY INVESTMENTS (Continued)

11.2. Investments at fair value through income statement

Investments at fair value through income statement comprise of equity investments as follows:

Investment type
Venture capital investments

Other investments at fair value through income statement

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
760,458 1,013,180
268,122 270,366

1,028,580 1,283,546

Movements in the investments at fair value through income statement are as follows:

31 December 2016

31 December 2015

Invest- Invest- Total Invest- Invest- Total
ments at ments at ments at ments at
fair value fair value fair value fair value
through through through through
equity income equity income
statement statement
At the beginning
of year 125,403 1,283,546 1,408,949 127,509 1,349,457 1,476,966
Additions - 11,666 11,666 - 33913 33913
Disposal/transfer - (90,136) (90,136) - (237,959) (237,959)
Fair value adjust-
ments 22,177 (176,496) (154,319) (2,106) 138,135 136,029
At the end of the
year 147,580 1,028,580 1,176,160 125,403 1,283,546 1,408,949

12. INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATE

The table below summarises the movement in investments in real estate during the year:

31 December 2016

31 December 2015

Invest- Invest- Total Invest- Invest- Total
ments in ments in ments in ments in
real estate  real estate real estate real estate
held-for- held-for- held-for- held-for-
use sale use sale
At the beginning
of year 208,629 - 208,629 206,159 66,061 273,120
Additions 9,042 9,042 2,470 - 2,470
Disposal - - - - (66,961) (66,961)
Fair value adjust-
ments 467 - 467 -
At the end of the
year 218,138 - 218,138 208,629 208,629
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13. FIXED ASSETS

Cost
As at 1 January 2015
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
As at 31 December 2015
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2015
Depreciation charge*
Disposals / transfer
As at 31 December 2015
Net book value as at
31 December 2015

Cost
As at 1 January 2016
Additions
Transfers
Disposals / write-off
As at 31 December 2016
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2016
Depreciation charge*
Disposals / transfer
As at 31 December 2016
Net book value as at
31 December 2016

Plantand Landand . Furniture Building Motor  Capital work
. L Equipment ) ) . ) Total
machinery buildings and fixture renovations vehicles in progress

70,573 72,556 40,116 29,465 10,356 1,745 7,651 232,462
4,013 - 8,000 32,642 3,165 211 248 48,279

- - 550 5,308 - - (5858) -
- - @ 46) - 48

74,586 72,556 48,664 67,415 13521 1,910 2,041 280,693
(38,304) (5962) (28443) (19,285) (2,504) (885) - (95,383)
(4,522) (965) (5816) (4,308) (1,389) (248) - (17,247)

- - 569 (336) (231) 46 - 48
(42,826) (6.927) (33,690) (23929) (4123) (1,087) - (112,582)
31,760 65,629 14,974 43,486 9,398 823 2,041 168,111
74,586 72,556 48,664 67,415 13,521 1,910 2,041 280,693
496 - 14,672 354 6,694 488 86 22,790

- - (347) (5) - (41) (953) (1,346)

75,082 72,556 62,989 67,764 20,215 2,357 1,174 302,137
(42,826) (6,927) (33,690) (23,929) (4,123) (1,087) - (112,582)
(4,760) (843) (6,365) (7,612) (1,447) (340) - (21,367)

- - 344 5 - 6 - 355
(47,586) (7,770) (39,711) (31,536) (5,570) (1,421) - (133,594)
27,496 64,786 23,278 36,228 14,645 936 1,174 168,543

*Depreciation charge of QAR 21.4 million (2015: QAR 17.2 million) and amortisation charge (Note 14) of QAR 10.1 million (2015: QAR 10.1 million)

include aggregately QAR 12.5 million (2015: QAR 9.1 million) charges attributable to the Bank and remaining to non-banking activities.
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software Brand and
and core contractual
) . Total
banking relation-
system ships
At 1 January 2015
Cost:
Beginning balance 26,383 34,969 61,352
Additions during the year 7,149 - 7,149
At 31 December 2015 33,532 34,969 68,501
Amortisation
Beginning balance (11,359) (15,602) (26,961)
Amortisation charge for the year (3,598) (6,456) (10,054)
At 31 December 2015 (14,957) (22,058) (37,015)
Net book value as at 31 December 2015 18,575 12,911 31,486
As at 1 January 2016
Cost:
Beginning balance 33,532 34,969 68,501
Additions during the year 5,287 - 5,287
At 31 December 2016 38,819 34,969 73,788
Amortisation
Beginning balance (14,957) (22,058) (37,015)
Amortisation charge for the year (3,612) (6,456) (10,068)
At 31 December 2016 (18,569) (28,514) (47,083)
Net book value at 31 December 2016 20,250 6,455 26,705

15. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFED AS HELD-FOR-
SALE

15.1. Assets and liabilities of Disposal Group

As at 31 December 2015, a non-group entity was finalising negotiation with the Bank to invest into
two of its subsidiaries (referred as “Disposal Group”). As a consequence of this investment from
the non-group entity, which was expected to take place during 2016, the Bank would have lost its
control and would have retained significant influence in the Disposal Group (a deemed disposal).
Therefore, the assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group were presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position as “held-for-sale” and in the consolidated income statement as
“discontinued operation” as at and for year ended 31 December 2015.

Subsequent to the year-end 2015, the negotiation with a third party to invest into aforementioned
subsidiaries did not materialise. Accordingly, assets and liabilities of Disposal Group were
reclassified as disclosed in Note 36.1.
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15 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFED AS HELD-FOR-

SALE (continued)
15.2. Assets and liabilities of Aviation Structure

In June 2016, the Bank entered into a structure to invest in two B737-900ERs aircrafts using special
purpose vehicles (the “Aviation Structure”), which are leased thereafter under a 7.5-year non-
cancellable [jara terms.

Special purpose vehicles (‘SPVs’) of the Aviation Structure, registered in Cayman Islands and
legally owned by a trust company registered in Cayman Islands, had been consolidated until
disposal by the Bank as a result of application of the accounting consolidation rules under
Financial Accounting Standard 23, whereby an entity can consolidate an SPV based on economic
substance despite the fact that the SPVs are not legally owned by and not legally related to the
Bank. These SPVs have financing related to the aircrafts without any recourse to the Bank.

The Bank invested in the Aviation Structure with an intention to sell to investors, and during the
year, the Bank sold all its stake to investors.

The Bank recognised income of QAR 1.2 million from the Aviation Structure from the date of
investment until disposal, which is included in the consolidated income statement under “profit
from discontinued operations, net of tax”.

15.3.  Equity investment held-for-sale
During the year, the Bank finalised negotiation to sell one of its investments and subsequent to
year-end, the Bank signed a sale purchase agreement to sell it for a series of installments,

accordingly the Bank has reclassified and presented the investment of QAR 86.3 million to assets
held-for-sale in these consolidated financial statements.

16. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets comprise the following:
31 December 31 December

2016 2015
Notes
Other non-financial assets
Prepayments 71,180 77,379
Total other non-financial assets 71,180 77,379
Other financial assets
Refundable deposits 9,414 6,135
Due from related parties 29 9,846 2,969
Due from employees 3,956 3269
Other receivables * 58,916 28,442
Total other financial assets 82,132 40,815
Total other assets 153,312 118,194

*Other receivables include accrued income of sukuk of QAR 7 million (31 December 2015: QAR 8
million) and positive fair value of Sharia-compliant-risk-management instruments as disclosed in
Note 32.
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17. FINANCING LIABILITIES

Accepted wakala deposits
Murabaha financing

Tjara financing

Other Islamic financing liabilities

18. CUSTOMERS’ BALANCES

Customers’ current accounts
Wakala deposits
Total customers' balances

19. OTHER LIABILITIES

Other non-financial liabilities
Unearned revenue
Advances and other payables
Total other non-financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities
Accounts payable
Staff-related payables
Dividends payable
Due to related parties

Other payables and accured expenses®

Total other financial liabilities
Total other liabilities

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
36,427 -
1,046,337 429,949
17,464 22,377

- 666
1,100,228 452,992

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
83,989 23,426
24,407 -

108,396 23,426

31 December

31 December

Notes 2016 2015
825 391

9,936 5,640

10,761 6,031

124,322 137,697

29,376 47,915

23,659 26,196

29 65 1,309
8,271 9,851

185,693 222,068

196,454 228,999

*Other payables and accrued expenses include negative fair value of Sharia-compliant-risk-

management instruments as disclosed in Note 32.

20. EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNT HOLDERS

a) By type

Term accounts

Profit payable to equity of investment account holders

b) By sector

Individual
Government
Corporate

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
2,681,783 3,038,667
15,887 15,708
2,697,670 3,054,375

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
153,104 204,648
175,004 162,133

2,369,562 2,687,594
2,697,670 3,054,375
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20. EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNT HOLDERS (continued)

Due to the terms of profit sharing ratios (predominantly at 5% to mudarib and 95% to investment
account holders) on mudaraba agreements and in order to align to general market profit rates, the
Bank increased the income of the unrestricted investment account holders by waiving some of its

share of profit as Mudarib. The share of profit waived amounted to QAR 6.4 million (2015: QAR

23.2 million) as presented in below table:

31 December

31 December

2016 2015

Return on equity of unrestricted investment account holders

in the profit before Bank’s Mudaraba income 87,190 57,914
Less:
- Return on unrestricted investment accountholders (81,470) (31,083)
- Share of profit waived by the Bank in favour of unrestricted

investment account holders (6,425) (23,244)
- Mudarib's incentives 3,341 -
Total return to unrestricted investment account holders (84,554) (54,327)
Bank’s net mudaraba income 2,636 3,587

21. SHARE CAPITAL

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
Authorized
250,000,000 ordinary shares
(2015: 250,000,000 ordinary shares) of QAR 10 each 2,500,000 2,500,000
Issued and paid
200,000,000 ordinary shares
(2015: 200,000,000 ordinary shares) of QAR 10 each 2,000,000 2,000,000

22, NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

This represents the Group’s non-controlling interest in Future Card Industries, Al Wasita Emirates
for Catering Services LLC and Isnad Catering Services WLL of 28.7%, 18.1% and 25% respectively
(31 December 2015: 28.7%, 15% and 25% respectively).

The interest of the Bank in Al Wasita Emirates for Catering Services LLC has been reduced to
81.9% (non-controlling interest has increased to 18.1% from 15%) due to remuneration arrangements
with the management of Al Wasita Emirates for Catering Services LLC that was approved
subsequent to 31 December 2015. As a result, the Bank increased non-controlling interests by QAR
4.9 million.

Subsequent to year end, as part of recapitalisation of Al Wasita Emirates for Catering Services
LLC, the shareholders of the Al Wasita Emirates for Catering Services agreed to further inject an
additional capital. As part of this process the non-controlling interest have contributed QAR 13.4
million.

Furthermore, as part of recapitalisation of Isnad Catering Services WLL, shareholders thereof

capitalised their financings to equity, which resulted in an increase of non-controlling interest by
QAR 4.6 million.
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23. REVENUE AND EXPENSES FROM NON-BANKING ACTIVITIES

2016 2015

Sales 436,947 415,512
Other income 5,764 1,283
Revenue from non-banking activities 442,711 416,795
Cost of sales (339,441) (322,001)
Other expenses (79,760) (66,980)
Finance costs (25,305) (13,959)
Expenses from non-banking activities (444,506) (402,940)
Net income from non-banking activities (1,795) 13,855

24. OTHER INCOME

2016 2015

Net foreign exchange gain* 43,307 8390
Rental income 8,925 11,185
Miscellaneous income 9,636 4,803
61,868 24,378

*It includes unrealised fair value of Sharia-compliant-risk-management instruments as disclosed

in Note 32.

25, OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE

2016 2015

Rent expense 22,500 22,568
Professional services 18,304 10,217
Other 27,867 22,294
68,671 55,079

26. BASIC / DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the net (loss) /profit attributable to the
Banks’ shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

2016 2015
Notes

Basic earnings per share
Net (loss) / profit attributable to the equity holders of the Bank

from continuing operations (266,886) 66,005
Net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Bank

from discontinued operations 152 1,199
Net (loss) / profit attributable to the equity holders of the Bank (265,687) 66,005
Total weighted average number of shares 200,000 200,000
Basic (loss) / earnings per share from continuing operations - QAR (1.34) 0.33
Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations - QAR 0.01 -
Basic (loss) / earnings per share - QAR (1.33) 0.33

Since there is no significant dilutive impact, basic earnings per share equal the dilutive earning

per shares.
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27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had the following contingent liabilities at the year end:
31 December 31 December

2016 2015

Notes
Letters of credit 913 6,465
Letters of guarantee 74,654 73,908
Unutilised credit facilities 133,341 124,495
208,908 204,868

Contingent liabilities related to Sharia-compliant-risk-management instruments as disclosed in
Note 32.

28, COMMITMENTS

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

Commitment for operating lease
Later than one year 71,797 96,232
No later than one year 27,522 29,100
99,319 125,332
Investment related commitment 22,306 28,367
Commitment for operating and capital expenditure 729 4,137
122,354 157,836

29. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Related
parties include the significant owners and entities over which the Group and the owners exercise
significant influence, directors and senior management personnel of the Group, close family
members, entities owned or controlled by them, associates and affiliated companies.

Balances and transactions in respect of related parties included in the financial statements are as
follows:

As at and for year ended 31 December 2016

Affiliated Associates Total
entities/
Notes persons
a) Consolidated statement of financial position
Financing assets 8 5,587 114,460 120,047
Other assets 16 9,846 - 9,846
Other liabilities 19 65 - 65
b) Consolidated income statement
Income from financing assets 195 11,622 11,817
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29. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES(Continued)

As at and for year ended 31 December 2015

Affiliated Associates Total
entities/
Notes persons
a) Consolidated statement of financial position
Financing assets 8 - 125,637 125,637
Other assets 16 2,969 - 2,969
Other liabilities 19 1,309 - 1,309
b) Consolidated income statement
Income from financing assets - 14,311 14,311
Revenue from non-banking activities 9 - 9
Key management compensation is presented below:
2016 2015
¢) Compensation of key management personnel
Senior management personnel 32,135 37,301
Shari’a Supervisory Board remuneration 522 578
32,657 37,879

30. ZAKAH

Zakah is directly borne by the owners. The Group does not collect or pay Zakah on behalf of its
owners. Zakah payable by the owners is computed by the Group on the basis of the method
prescribed by the Shari’a Supervisory Board of the Bank and notified to the Owners. Zakah payable
by the owners, for the year ended 31 December 2016 was QAR 0.10 for every share held (2015: QAR
0.1150).

3L FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial instruments definition and classification

Financial instruments comprise all financial assets and liabilities of the Group. Financial assets
include cash and cash equivalents, investment carried at amortised cost, financing assets, accounts
receivable, equity investments and other financial assets. Financial liabilities include customer
balances, due to banks and other financial liabilities. Financial instruments also include contingent
liabilities and commitments included in off financial position items.

Note 3 explains the accounting policies used to recognise and measure the significant financial
instruments and their respective income and expenses items.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is determined
for each investment individually in accordance with the valuation policies adopted by the Group
as set out in 3.11.
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31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Risk management

Risk is an inherent part of the Group’s business activities. The Group’s risk management and
governance framework is intended to provide progressive controls and continuous management
of the major risks associated with the Group’s activities. Risks are managed by a process of
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process
of risk management is critical to the Group’s continuing profitability. Each business unit within
the Group is accountable for the risk exposures relating to their responsibilities. The Group is
exposed to investment and credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational risks, as well as
concentration risk and other external business risks. The Group’s ability to properly identify
measure, monitor and report risk is a core element of the Group’s operating philosophy and
profitability.

Risk framework and governance

The Group’s risk management process is an integral part of the organisation’s culture and is
embedded into all of its practices and processes. The Board of Directors (the Board), and a number
of Board’s subcommittees including Executive Committee; and Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee; management committees; and senior management and line managers all contribute
to the effective, Group wide, management of risk.

The Board has overall responsibility for establishing the Group’s risk culture and ensuring that an
effective risk management framework is in place. The Board approves and periodically reviews the
Group’s risk management policies and strategies.

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee is tasked with implementing risk management policies,
guidelines and limits as well as ensuring that monitoring processes are in place. The Risk
Management Department provides independent monitoring to both the Board and the Audit, Risk
and Compliance Committee whilst also working closely with the business units which ultimately
own and manage the risks.

Investment risk

Equity investment risks are identified and assessed via extensive due diligence activities conducted
by the respective investment departments. The Group’s investments in venture capital are by
definition in illiquid markets, frequently in emerging markets. Such investments cannot generally
be hedged or liquidated easily. Consequently, the Group seeks to mitigate its risks via more direct
means. Post-acquisition risk management is rigorously exercised, mainly via board representation
within the investee company, during the life of the private equity transaction. Periodic reviews of
investments are undertaken and presented to the Investment Committee for review. Concerns over
risks and performance are addressed via the investment area responsible for managing the
investment under the oversight of the Investment Committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss of principal or profit earned because its
customers, clients or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations. The Group
manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for
individual counterparties, related parties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and by
monitoring exposures in relation to such limits.
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31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the relevant components of the
financial position.
31 December 31 December

2016 2015
Notes

Balances with banks 5 95,804 93,754
Placements with financial institutions 5 1,009,673 1,506,414
Due from banks 6 355,000 -
Investments carried at amortised cost 7 893,217 943,416
Financing assets ] 1,472,871 1,109,417
Accounts receivable 9 249,691 217,126
Other financial assets 16 82,132 40,815
4,158,388 3,910,942

As at 31 December 2016 total gross amount of past due and impaired financing assets was QAR 131.7
million (31 December 2015: QAR 75.5 million) and overdue instalment amount was QAR 73.2 million
(31 December 2015: QAR 10.4 million), which is 4.3% (31 December 2015: 0.8%) of the gross amount of
financing assets. The remaining balance is neither past due nor impaired (31 December 2015: nil).

Risk
Only balances with banks and placements with banks within cash and cash equivalents; and due
from banks; as well as investments carried at amortised cost have external rating which are
summarised below:

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
AAA to A- 1,732,712 2,020,821
BBB+to B- 620,982 522,763

As an active participant in the banking markets, the Group has a significant concentration of credit
risk with other financial institutions. At 31 December 2016 the Group had balances with 3
counterparty banks (31 December 2015: 3 banks) with aggregated amounts above QAR 250 million.
The total aggregate amount of these deposits was QAR 1.37 billion (31 December 2015: QAR 1.26
billion). The analysis by geographical region of the Group’s financial assets having credit risk is as
follows:

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

Qatar 3,047,396 2,703,295
United Arab Emirates 712,727 681,730
Asia & Middle East 181,423 302,984
North America 9,845 25,022
Europe & Others 206,997 197,911
4,158,388 3,910,942
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31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The distribution of financial assets items by industry sector is as follows:

31 December

31 December

2016 2015

Financial services 2,082,717 2,148,715
Industrial 24,798 20,009
Real estate and construction 1,240,844 872,724
Technology 8,555 4957
Oil & gas - -
Others 801,474 864,537
4,158,388 3,910,942

Liguidity risk and funding management

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group will not have sufficient funds available to meet its
financial liabilities as they fall due. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Treasury department receives information from the Financial Control Department regarding
the liquidity profile of the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities and details of other projected cash
flows arising from projected future business. The Treasury Department then maintains a portfolio of
short-term liquid assets to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained within the Bank as a whole.

All liquidity policies and procedures are subject to review and approval by Assets-Liabilities
Management Committee (ALCO) which also regularly receives reports relating to the Bank’s

liquidity position.

35



QATAR FIRST BANK L.L.C (Public)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (expressed in QAR000)

I pdad cliy

QF

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liguidity risk and funding management (continued)

The table below shows an analysis of financial assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

At 31 December 2016

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Due from banks

Investments carried at amortised cost

Financing assets

Accounts receivable

Equity investments

Assets of disposal group classified as held-for-sale
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities and equity of unrestricted investment
account holders

Financing liabilities

Customers’ balances

Other financial liabilities

Equity of unrestricted investment account holders

Total financial liabilities and equity of unrestricted
investment account holders

Net liquidity gap
Net cumulative gap
Contingent liabilities*

Commitments

On demand Lessthan 3 3to 6 6 to 12 1to5years Total
months months months

104,123 11009;673 - - - 1;113;796
- 200,000 155,000 - - 355,000

) - - 164,324 728,893 893,217

21 45,680 90,231 14,046 1,322,893 1,472,871
2,760 101,610 66,531 78,290 500 249,691

- 60,552 99,214 197,789 818,605 1,176,160

- 86,253 - - - 86,253

- 24,454 7,836 6,570 43,272 82,132
106,904 1,528,222 418,812 461,019 2,914,163 5,429,120
- 288,090 736,824 29,806 45,508 1,100,228
83,989 - - 16,555 7,852 108,396
24,403 60,080 42,238 32,730 26,242 185,693
301 2,298,601 287,321 161,447 - 2,697,670
108,693 2,646,771 1,016,383 240,538 79,602 4,091,987
(1,789) (1,118,549) (597,571) 220,481 2,834,561 1,337,133

(1,789) (1,120,338) (1,717,909) (1,497,428) 1,337,133
- 81,717 51,856 40,670 34,665 208,908
- 23,035 13,761 13,761 71,797 122,354

*Contingent liabilities related to Sharia-compliant-risk-management instruments as disclosed in Note 32.
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31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liguidity risk and funding management (continued)

The table below shows an analysis of financial assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

At 31 December 2015

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments carried at amortised cost
Financing assets

Accounts receivable

Equity investments

Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities and equity of unrestricted investment
account holders

Financing liabilities

Customers’ balances

Other financial liabilities

Equity of unrestricted investment account holders

Total financial liabilities and equity of unrestricted
investment account holders

Net liquidity gap
Net cumulative gap
Contingent liabilities*

Commitments

On demand Lessthan 3 3to 6B 6 to 12 1to5years Total
months months months

97,551 1,506,412 - - - 1,603,963
) - - 82,997 860,419 943,416
10,459 70,718 56,734 125,983 845,523 1,109,417
- 91,336 28,812 52,025 44,953 217,126

- - 15,351 120,720 1,272,878 1,408,949

- 7,792 6,705 1,632 24,686 40,815
108,010 1,676,258 107,602 383,357 3,048,459 5,323,686
666 176,514 39,854 120,148 115,810 452,992
23,426 - - - - 23,426
26,196 81,009 24,082 16,479 75,202 222,968
- 2,333,659 633,858 86,858 - 3,054,375
50,288 2,591,182 697,794 223,485 191,012 3,753,761
57,722 (914,924) (590,192) 159,872 2,857,447 1,569,925

57,722 (857,202) (1,447,394) (1,287,522) 1,569,925
- 37,202 8,163 4,112 155,391 204,368
- 32,504 14,550 14,550 96,232 157,836

*Contingent liabilities related to Sharia-compliant-risk-management instruments as disclosed in Note 32.
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31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
due to adverse changes in market variables such as profit rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices
and commodities. The Group classifies exposures to market risk into either listed or non- listed
corporate investments.

a) Listed equity investments

The Group has certain exposure to equity price risk mainly due to some equity investments being
listed in stock exchanges. At 31 December 2016, if equity prices at that date had been 5% higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, net income for the year would have not been impacted (31
December 2015: no impact) and fair value reserve would have been impacted by QAR 6 million (31
December 2015: QAR 4.9 million) higher/lower.

b) Non- listed equity investments
Sensitivities on non-listed equity investments are disclosed in Note 33.

Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in profit rates will affect future cash flows or
the fair values of the financial instruments. The Group’s current exposure to profit rate risk is limited
to the following:

. The Group’s placement with the financial institutions (classified as ‘Placements with
financial institutions’);

o The Group’s investment portfolio of Sukuk (classified as “Investments at amortised cost”);

. The Group’s investments in murabaha (classified as “Financing assets”); and

. Amounts borrowed by the Group from financial institutions (classified as “Financing

liabilities”).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 100 basis point (bp) change in profit rates, with

all other variables held constant. The effect of decreases in profit rate is expected to be equal and
opposite to the effect of the increases shown.

31 Decem- Change in Effect on

ber 2016  basis points net profit/

¢/ loss (+/-)

Assets

Placements with financial institutions 1,009,673 100 10,097
Due from banks 355,000 100 3,550
Investments carried at amortised cost 893,217 100 8,932
Financing assets 1,472,871 100 14,729

Liabilities and Equity of unrestricted investment
account holders

Financing liabilities 1,100,228 100 (11,002)
Equity of unrestricted investment account holders 2,697,670 100 (26,977)
671

38



QATAR FIRST BANK L.L.C (Public)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Il Ll
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (expressed in QAR'000) Q FB

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

31 Decem- Change in Effect on
ber2015  basis points net profit/

/) loss (+/-)

Assets

Placements with financial institutions 1,506,414 100 15,064
Investments carried at amortised cost 943,416 100 9,434
Financing assets 1,109,417 100 11,094

Liabilities and Equity of unrestricted investment
account holders

Financing liabilities 452,992 100 (4,530)
Equity of unrestricted investment account holders 3,054,375 100 (30,544)
518

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to adverse
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Board has set limits on positions by currency. Positions are
monitored regularly to ensure that positions are maintained within established limits.

The table below indicates the currencies that are pegged to the Qatari Riyals and, hence the foreign
exchange risk for the Group in respect of these currencies is minimal.
Exposure (QAR equivalent)
31 December 31 December

Currency 2016 2015
UsSD 571,061 1,372,307
AED 114,389 56,442
SAR 267 417

The table below shows the impact of a 5% movement in the currency rate, for other than those pegged
to the Qatari Riyals, against the Qatari Riyals, with all other variables held constant on the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of changes in Owners’ equity. The
effect of decreases in the currency rates is expected to be equal and opposite to the effect of the
increases shown.

Exposure (QAR equivalent) Effect on net profit (+/-)

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Currency 2016 2015 2016 2015
GBP 52,651 76,678 2,633 3,834
EUR 10,513 (1,012) 526 (51
JOD 49 855 2 43
TRY 480,080 564,200 24,004 28,210
KWD 32 33 2 2

Commodities price risk
The Group does not currently have commodities portfolios; hence it has no exposure to commodity
price risks.
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31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems and control failures, fraud and human errors,
which can result in financial and reputation loss, and legal and regulatory consequences. The Group
manages operational risk through appropriate controls, instituting segregation of duties and internal
checks and balances, including internal audit and compliance. The Risk Management Department
facilitates the management of operational risk by way of assisting in the identification of, monitoring
and managing of operational risk in the Bank. The Bank has Risk and Control Assessments and Key
Risk Indicators in place for each department.

Concentration risk

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or
activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or
other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance to
developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location or individual obligor.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to ensure that the Group complies
with regulatory capital requirements and that the Group maintains healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and to maximise Owners’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment to Owners, return capital to
Owners or issue new capital. The QFCRA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Group as a
whole. In implementing current capital requirements, the QFCRA requires the Group to maintain a
minimum capital adequacy ratio of 10.5% as prescribed by the Banking Business Prudential Rules of
2014.

The Group’s capital resources are divided into two tiers:

. Tier 1 capital, which includes ordinary share capital, share premium, retained earnings and
non-controlling interest after deductions for goodwill and intangible assets, and other
regulatory adjustments relating to items that are included in equity but are treated differently
for capital adequacy purposes.

. Tier 2 capital, which includes the fair value reserve relating to unrealised gains on equity
instruments classified as investments at fair value through equity and currency translation
reserve.

Other deductions from capital include the carrying amounts of investments in subsidiaries that are
not included in the regulatory consolidation, investments in the capital of banks and certain other
regulatory items. Risk-weighted assets are determined according to specified requirements that seek
to reflect the varying levels of risk attached to assets and off- financial position exposures.
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31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group’s policy is at all times to meet or exceed the capital requirements determined by the
QFCRA. There have been no material changes in the Group’s management of capital during the
year. The Group’s capital adequacy ratio, calculated in accordance with the capital adequacy

guidelines issued by the QFCRA, is as follows:
31 December 31 December

2016 2015
Total risk weighted assets 8,732,266 9,670,524
Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000
Reserves (561) (22,243)
(Accumulated deficit) / Retained earnings (200,754) 68,319
Non-controlling interest 76,366 53,968
Intangible assets (26,705) (14,611)
Other regulatory adjustments (17,993) -
Total qualifying capital and reserve funds 1,830,353 2,085,433
Total capital resources expressed as a percentage of
total risk weighted assets 20.96% 21.56%

32. SHARIA-COMPLIANT-RISK-MANAGEMENT INSTRUMENTS
32.1 Profit rate swap

Swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for another. In the case of profit rate
swaps, counterparties generally exchange fixed and floating profit payments in a single currency
without exchanging principal.

32.2  Unilateral promise to buy/sell currencies

Unilateral promises to buy/sell currencies are promises to either buy or sell a specified currency
at a specific price and date in the future. The actual transactions are executed on the promise
execution dates, by exchanging the purchase/sale offers and acceptances between the relevant
parties. The table below shows the positive and negative fair values of Sharia-compliant-risk-
management financial instruments together with the notional amounts analysed by the term to
maturity. The notional amounts, which provide an indication of the volumes of the transactions
outstanding at the year-end, do not necessarily reflect the amounts of future cash flows involved
and the credit and market risk, which can be identified from the derivatives fair value.

Positive Negative Notional Less 6to12 1 to 5years
fair value fair value amount than 3 months
31 December 2016 months
Profit rate swaps 134 (454) 851,505 - 163,800 687,705
Unilateral pro-
mise to buy/
sell currencies 4,260 (1,013) 1,148,371 262,759 885,612
Currency options 2,228 - 120,450 - 120,450
6,622 (1,467) 2,120,326 262,759 1,169,862 687,705
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32. SHARIA-COMPLIANT-RISK-MANAGEMENT INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Positive Negative Notional Less 6 to 12 1to 5years
fair value fair value amount than 3 months
31 December 2015 months
Profit rate swaps - (1,462) 813,285 - 36,400 776,885
Unilateral pro-
mise to buy/
sell currencies - (4,911) 1,309,971 291,913 1,018,058
- (6,373) 2,123,256 291,913 1,054,458 776,885

Unrealised fair value gain/loss arising from Sharia-compliant-risk management instruments were
recognized in these consolidation financial statements as required by IFRS; however, as per
requirement of Sharia principles gains/losses are realised when actual transactions / settlements
happen.

33. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's financial instruments are accounted for under the historical cost method with the
exception of equity investments. By contrast, the fair value represents the price that would be
received to sell an asset, or paid to transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Differences therefore can arise between book values under
the historical cost method and fair value estimates. Underlying the definition of fair value is the
presumption that the Group is a going concern without any intention or requirement to curtail
materially the scale of its operation or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms. Generally
accepted methods of determining fair value include reference to quoted prices and the use of
valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis.

Set out below is a comparison of the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments:

31 December 2016

Carrying
Amount Fair Value
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,113,796 1,113,796
Due from banks 355,000 355,000
Investments carried at amortised cost 893,217 897,202
Financing assets 1,472,871 1,472,871
Accounts receivable 249,691 249,691
Equity investments 1,176,160 1,176,160
Assets of disposal group classified as held-for-sale 86,253 86,253
Other financial assets 82,132 82,132
5,429,120 5,433,105
Financial Liabilities:
Financing liabilities 1,100,228 1,100,228
Customers’ current accounts 108,396 108,396
Other financial liabilities 185,693 185,693
Equity of unrestricted investment account holders 2,697,670 2,697,670
4,091,987 4,091,987

42



QATAR FIRST BANK L.L.C (Public)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Il Ll
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 (expressed in QAR'000) Q FB

33 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
31 December 2015

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,603,963 1,603,963
Investments carried at amortised cost 943,416 938,034
Financing assets 1,109,417 1,109,417
Accounts receivable 217,126 217,126
Equity investments 1,408,949 1,408,949
Other financial assets 40,815 40,815

5,323,686 5,318,304
Financial Liabilities:
Financing liabilities 452,992 452,992
Customers’ current accounts 23,426 23,426
Other financial liabilities 222,968 222,068
Equity of unrestricted investment account holders 3,054,375 3,054,375

3,753,761 3753761

33.1. Fair value hierarchy

Fair value measurements are analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy as follows:

® level one are measurements at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities,

(i)  level two measurements are valuations techniques with all material inputs observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices), and

(iif)  level three measurements are valuations not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs). Management applies judgment in categorising financial
instruments using the fair value hierarchy. If a fair value measurement uses observable
inputs that require significant adjustment, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2016
Equity investments
- at fair value through equity 121,292 - 26,288 147,580
- at fair value through income statement - - 1,028,580 1,028,580
Net gains and losses included in the
consolidated statement of
changes in owners’ equity 22,177 - - 22,177
Net gains and losses, recognized
through consolidated
income statement - - (176,496) (176,496)

Sharia-compliant-risk-management instruments related assets and liabilities, as disclosed in Note
32, belong to level 2 fair value hierarchy.
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33 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2015
Equity investments
- at fair value through equity 99,115 - 26,288 125,403
- at fair value through income statement - - 1,283,546 1,283,546
Net gains and losses included in the
consolidated statement of changes in
owners’ equity (2,106) - - (2,106)
Net gains and losses, recognized
through consolidated income
statement - - 138,135 138,135

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost are equal to the
carrying value, hence, not included in the fair value hierarchy table, except for investments carried
at amortised cost for which the fair value amounts to QAR 897 million (31 December 2015: QAR

938 million) is derived using Level 1 fair value hierarchy.

The below table summarises the valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurement at
31 December 2016 and 2015 for level three investments, measured at fair value:

Range of inputs

Valuation
technique Inputs used 2016 2015
Investments at fair value through Discounted Growth rate 1% to 5.4% 1% to 5%
income statement cash flows Discount rate 10% to 17.7% 10% to 17.1%

Movements in level 3 financial instruments

The following table shows the reconciliation of the opening and closing amount of Level 3 investments

which are recorded at fair value:

At1  Total losses Additions Sales/ At 31
January recorded in transfers December
2016 consolida- 2016
ted income
statement
Equity investments
- at fair value
through equity 26,288 - - - 26,288
- at fair value
through income
statement 1,283,546 (176,496) 11,666 (90,136) 1,028,580
1,309,834 (176,496) 11,666 (90,136) 1,054,868
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33 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
At1 Total gains Additions Sales/ At31
January recorded in transfers December
2015 consolida- 2015
ted income
statement
Equity investments
- at fair value
through equity 26,288 - - - 26,288
- at fair value
through income
statement 1,119,868 138,135 33,913 (8,370) 1,283,546
1,146,156 138,135 33913 (8:370) 1,309,834

Transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3

There were no transfers between the levels during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: none).

The effect on the valuations due to possible changes in key variables used for valuations:

Growth rate: Growth rates are assumed to be in range of 1% to 5.4% (2015: 1% to 5%) based on
actual and expected performance of the investee. Should the growth rates increase / decrease
by 1 percentage point (2015: 1 percentage point), the carrying value of the investments would
be QAR 87.3 million higher / QAR 71.1 million lower (2015: QAR 103.3 million higher / QAR
82.9 million lower);

Discount rate: The discount rates are assumed to be in range of 10%-17.7% (2015:
10% - 17.1%) for different investments. Should these discount rates increase / decrease by 1
percentage point (2015: 1 percentage point), the carrying value of the investments would be
QAR 111 million lower / QAR 136.4 million higher (2015: QAR 122.4 million lower / QAR 152.1
million higher);

Expected cash flows: Amount of expected cash flows and timing thereof are key variables
in valuation of the investments. Should the amount of expected cash flows increase /
decrease by 1 percentage point (2015: 1 percentage point), the carrying value of the
investments would be QAR 11.5 million higher / lower (2015: QAR 11.5 million higher / lower).
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34. SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has three reportable segments, as described below. The
reportable segments offer different products and services, and are managed separately based on
the Group’s management and internal reporting structure. For each of the reportable segments,
the management reviews internal reports periodically. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

Alternative Investments

The Group's alternative investments business segment includes direct investment in the venture
capital business and real estate asset classes. Alternative investments business is primarily
responsible to acquire large or significant stakes, with board representation, in well managed
companies and assets that have strong, established market positions and the potential to develop
and expand. The team works as partners with the management of investee companies to unlock
value through enhancing operational and financial performance in order to maximize returns. This
segment seeks investments opportunities in growth sectors within the GCC and MENA region, as
well as Turkey and United Kingdom, but remains opportunistic to attractive investment
propositions outside of the geographies identified.

Private Bank

The Group’s private bank business segment includes private banking, corporate & institutional
banking and treasury & investment management services. The Private banking department targets
qualified High Net Worth clients with Sharia compliant up-market products and services that
address personal, business and wealth requirements. The services offered under the private
banking department includes advisory, deposit accounts, brokerage, funds and investments,
treasury Forex products, plain vanilla & specialized financing, credit card and Elite services. The
corporate & institutional banking department offers deposits accounts and plain vanilla &
specialized financing solutions for corporates in Qatar, the GCC and the broader region for sectors
and applications currently underserved by regional banks. The treasury department is offering
short term liquid investments and FX products to banking clients, deploying the bank’s liquidity
as well as leading the product development and idea conceptualization function.

Other
Unallocated assets, liabilities and revenues are related to some central management and support
functions of the Group.

Information regarding the results, assets and liabilities of each reportable segment is included
below. Performance is measured based on segment profit before tax, as included in the internal
management reports that are reviewed by the management.

Segment assets and liabilities

The Group does not monitor segments on the basis of segment assets and liabilities and do not
possess detailed information thereof. Consequently, disclosure of segment assets and liabilities
are not presented in these consolidated financial statements.
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34 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Below is the information about operating segments:

Alternative Private Other Total
Invest- Bank
ments

For the year ended 31 December 2016
INCOME
Revenue from non-banking activities 442,711 - - 442,711
Gain / (loss) on re-measurement of

investments at fair value through

income statement (176,496) - - (176,496)
Dividend income 13,115 - 13,115
Profit on investments carried at

amortised cost - 28,778 - 28,778
Gain on disposal of investments carried

at amortised cost - 673 - 673
Gain on disposal of investment in real

estate - - - -
Gain on disposal of convertible

murabaha - - - -
Income from financing assets 11,622 57,362 - 68,984
Income from placements with financial

institutions - 31,037 - 31,037
Other income 33,279 19,650 8,939 61,868
Total Income Before Return To

Investment Account Holders 324,231 137,500 8,939 470,670
Return to unrestricted investment

account holders - (84,554) - (84,554)
TOTAL SEGMENT INCOME 324,231 52,946 8,939 386,116
EXPENSES
Expenses from non-banking activities (444,506) - - (444,506)
Staff costs (15,552) (21,625) (42,973) (80,150)
Financing costs (14,838) (7,687) - (2 2,52 5)
Depreciation and amortization (352) (6,414) (5,744) (12,510)
Other operating expenses (11,659) (15,823) (41,189) (68,671)
TOTAL SEGMENT EXPENSES (486,907) (51,549) (89,906) (628,362)
Provision for impairment on financing

assets (9,440) (15,876) - (25,316)
NET LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (172,116) (14,479) (80,967) (267,562)
Income tax expense - - - -
NET LOSSFROM CONTINUING

OPERATIONS (172,116) (14,479) (80,967) (267,562)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit from discontinued operations,

net of tax - 1,199 - 1,199
REPORTABLE SEGMENT LOSS (172,116) (13,280) (80,967) (266,363)
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34 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Alternative Private Other Total
Invest- Bank
ments

For the year ended 31 December 2015
INCOME
Revenue from non-banking activities 416,795 - - 416,795
Gain/ (loss) on re-measurement of

investments at fair value through

income statement 138,135 - - 138,135
Dividend income 8,232 - - 8,232
Profit on investments carried at

amortised cost - 21,450 - 21,450
Gain on disposal of investments carried

at amortised cost - 2,541 - 2,541
Gain / (loss) on disposal of equity

investments (29,360) - - (29,360)
Gain on disposal of investment in real

estate 16,961 - - 16,961
Gain on disposal of convertible

murabaha 32,241 - - 32,241
Income from financing assets 26,063 30,077 - 56,140
Income from placements with financial

institutions - 10,312 - 10,312
Other income 9,526 3,650 11,202 24,378
Total Income Before Return To

Investment Account Holders 618,593 68,030 11,202 697,825
Return to unrestricted investment

account holders - (54,327) . (54,327)
TOTAL SEGMENT INCOME 618,593 13,703 11,202 643,498
EXPENSES
Expenses from non-banking activities (402,940) - - (402,940)
Staff costs (16,519) (20,453) (53,834) (90,806)
Financing costs (14,179) - - (14,179)
Depreciation and amortization (360) (3,508) (5,259) (9,127)
Other operating expenses (4,238) (11,657) (39,184) (55,079)
TOTAL SEGMENT EXPENSES (438,236) (35,618) (98,277) (572,131)
Provision for impairment on financing

assets - (3,313) - (3,313)
NET PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE

INCOME TAX 180,357 (25,228) (87,075) 68,054
Income tax expense - - - -
NET PROFIT / (LOSS) FROM

CONTINUING OPERATIONS 180,357 (25,228) (87,075) 68,054
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit from discontinued operations,

net of tax N N N
REPORTABLE SEGMENT

PROFIT / (LOSS) 180,357 (25,228) (87,075) 68,054
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34 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical segment information

The Group currently operates in two geographic markets namely Qatar and other countries. The
following tables show the distribution of the Group’s net income by geographical segments, based
on the location in which the transactions are recorded during the year.

Qatar Others Total

For the year ended 31 December 2016

INCOME
Revenue from non-banking activities 30,028 412,683 442,711
Gain/ (loss) on re-measurement of investments at

fair value through income statement - (176,496) (176,496)
Dividend income 4,705 8,410 13,115
Profit on investments carried at

amortised cost 6,724 22,054 28,778
Gain on disposal of investments carried at

amortised cost - 673 673
Gain / (loss) on disposal of equity investments - - -
Gain on disposal of investment in real estate - - -
Gain on disposal of convertible murabaha - - -
Income from financing assets 57,362 11,622 68,984
Income from placements with financial institutions 30,938 99 31,037
Other income 57,008 4,860 61,868
Total Income Before Return To Investment

Account Holders 186,765 283,905 470,670
Return to unrestricted investment account holders (84,554) - (84,554)
TOTAL INCOME 102,211 283,905 386,116
EXPENSES
Expenses from non-banking activities (30,383) (414,123) (444,506)
Staff costs (80,150) - (80,150)
Financing costs (326) (22,199) (22,525)
Depreciation and amortization (12,510) - (12,510)
Other operating expenses (57,012) (11,659) (68,671)
TOTAL EXPENSES (180,381) (447,981) (628,362)
Provision for impairment on financing assets (15,876) (9,440) (25,316)
NET LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (94,046) (173,516) (267,562)
Income tax expense - - -
NET LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (94,046) (173,516) (267,562)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit from discontinued operations, net of tax - 1,199 1,199
NET PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (94,046) (172,317) (266,363)
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34 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

INCOME

Revenue from non-banking activities

Gain / (loss) on re-measurement of investments at
fair value through income statement

Dividend income

Profit on investments carried at amortised cost

Gain on disposal of investments carried at
amortised cost

Gain / (loss) on disposal of equity investments

Gain on disposal of investment in real estate

Gain on disposal of convertible murabaha

Income from financing assets

Income from placements with financial institutions

Other income

Total Income Before Return To Investment
Account Holders

Return to unrestricted investment account holders
TOTAL INCOME

EXPENSES

Expenses from non-banking activities
Staff costs

Financing costs

Depreciation and amortization

Other operating expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES

Provision for impairment on financing assets

NET PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX

Income tax expense

NET PROFIT / (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit from discontinued operations, net of tax

NET PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

35. DIVIDENDS

Qatar Others Total
28,673 388,122 416,795
10,920 127,215 138,135

1,680 6,552 8,232
2,813 18,637 21,450
- 2,541 2,541

- (29,360) (29,360)
- 16,061 16,961
- 32,241 32,241
30,077 26,063 56,140

9,889 423 10,312
23,783 595 24,378

107,835 589,990 697,825
(54,327) - (54,327)

53,508 589,990 643,498

(27,548) (375,392) (402,940)
(90,806) - (90,806)
- (14179) (14179)

(9.127) (9.127)

(50,841) (4,238) (55,079)

(178,322) (393,809) (572,131)

(3313 - (3313
(128,127) 196,181 68,054
(128,127) 196,181 68,054
(128,127) 196,181 68,054

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 14 March 2017, proposed no dividend distribution for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil). This proposal is subject to shareholders’ approval at the General

Assembly Meeting.

In its General Assembly Meeting held on 31 March 2015, the shareholders of the Bank approved a
dividend distribution of QAR 160 million for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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36. COMPARATIVES
36.1.  Assets and liabilities of disposal group classified as held-for-sale

As disclosed in Note 15.1, subsequent to the year-end 2015, the negotiation with a third party to
invest into the Disposal Group did not materialise. Therefore, in accordance with AAOIFI’s FAS
23 “Consolidation” and IFRS 5 “Non-current assets held-for-sale and discontinued operations”,
assets and liabilities held-for-use and discontinued operations are consolidated on a line-by-line
basis including earlier periods resulting in certain reclassifications. The effect of reclassifications
in the consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated income statement for
presentation purposes was as follows on the amounts as at and for year ended 31 December 2015:

As at 31 December 2015

As Reclassifi- As reclass-
originally cation ified
presented

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,599,812 4,151 1,603,963
Accounts receivable 25,717 191,409 217,126
Inventories 42,920 7,625 50,545
Investments in real estate - 208,629 208,629
Fixed assets 146,333 21,778 168,111
Intangible assets 14,611 16,875 31,486
Other assets 29,877 88,317 118,194
Assets held-for-sale 538,784 (538,784) -
Liabilities
Financial liabilities 218,246 234,746 452,992
Other liabilities 106,086 122,913 228,999
Liabilities held-for-sale 357,659 (357,659) -
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Revenue from non-banking activities 109,838 306,957 416,795
Expenses from non-banking activities 105,727 (297,213) (191,486)
Discontinued operations 9,744 (9,744) -

37. SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to year-end, the Bank has sold a partial stake in one of its investment in healthcare
platforms and also signed a share purchase agreement to sell its full stake in one of its investment
in food & beverage.
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